
 
Notice of a public  

Decision Session - Executive Member for Culture, Leisure & 
Communities [previously Executive Member for Culture, Leisure 

and Tourism] 
 
To: Councillor Smalley  (Executive Member) 

 
Date: Monday, 23 September 2019 

 
Time: 4.30 pm 

 
Venue: The King Richard III Room (GO49) - West Offices 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Notice to Members – Post Decision Calling In: 
 
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on 
this agenda, notice must be given to Democratic Services by 4:00pm 
on Wednesday 25 September 2019. 
 
*With the exception of matters that have been subject of a previous 
call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are not 
subject to the call-in provisions. Any called in items will be considered 
by the Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny Management 
Committee. 

Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be 
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on  

Thursday 19 September 2019. 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point in the meeting, the Executive Member is asked to 

declare: 
• any personal interests not included on the Register of  

Interests;  
• any prejudicial interests; 
• any disclosable pecuniary interests 

which he may have in respect of business on this agenda. 
  

 

http://modgov.york.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=144&Year=0
http://modgov.york.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=144&Year=0


 

2. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 2) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the Decision Session held on 

22 July 2019. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered to speak can do so. The deadline for registering is 
5.00pm on Friday 20 September 2019. Members of the public 
can speak on agenda items or matters within the Executive 
Member’s remit. 
 
To register to speak please contact the Democracy Officer for the 
meeting, on the details at the foot of the agenda. 
 
Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings 
Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting 
may be filmed and webcast, or recorded, including any registered 
public speakers who have given their permission. The broadcast 
can be viewed at http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts or, if 
recorded, this will be uploaded onto the Council’s website 
following the meeting. 
 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting.  Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting 
should contact the Democracy Officer (contact details are at the 
foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present.  It can be viewed at  
 
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webc
asting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809  
 

4. York Learning: Future Direction   (Pages 3 - 8) 
 This report proposes a direction of travel for the future 

management arrangements of York Learning. 
 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809


 

5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Executive Member considers 

urgent under the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Louise Cook 
Tel: 01904 551031 
Email: louise.cook@york.gov.uk  
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting Louise Cook 
Democracy Officer 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Written Representations 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

mailto:louise.cook@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for 
Culture, Leisure & Communities 

Date 22 July 2019 

Present Councillor Smalley 

 

1. Declarations of Interest  
 
The Executive Member confirmed that he had no personal 
interests not included on the Register of Interests, nor any 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests, to declare in the 
business on the agenda. 
 

2. Minutes  
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the Decision Session of the 

Executive Member for Culture, Leisure & Tourism 
held on 18 March 2019 be approved and signed by 
the Executive Member as a correct record. 

 
3. Public Participation  

 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at 
the session under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 

4. York Learning -  Strategic / Service Plan 2019/20  
 
The Executive Member considered a report which provided an 
overview of the York Learning service and some of the 
opportunities and challenges it faced, and sought approval for 
the 2019/20 Strategic Plan for the service.  The Plan, attached 
as Annex 1 to the report, set out detailed actions to achieve the 
ambitions of the service over the academic year beginning in 
September 2019.  Influenced by a rigorous self-assessment 
process, it had already been through an internal service 
consultation with senior managers.  
 
Officers at the meeting drew attention to a number of matters 
identified within the Plan, in particular: 

 The £50k grant received from Shine for work on the Social 
Mobility Project (p.8 of the agenda papers) 

Page 1 Agenda Item 2



 

 Action being taken to mitigate a funding shortfall on the 
16-18 full time learning programme and continuing issues 
with the Apprenticeships offer (p.11) 

 Progress on agreeing a strategy for future collaborative 
working with North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) 
(p.13) 

 The need for further funding to book venues for future jobs 
fairs (p.13). 

 
In response to questions from the Executive Member, it was 
confirmed that: 

 Developing the service’s Information and Guidance (IAG) 
and Wellbeing offer (p.11) would help learners find places 
on the right courses, by providing a pathway for charities 
and individuals to access specialist advice. 

 Partnership working with NYCC had proved a positive 
step, enabling both organisations to benefit from shared 
resources. 

 
Resolved: That the York Learning Strategic Plan 2019/20 

attached as Annex 1 to the report be approved. 
 
Reason: To provide a sound governance arrangement for 

York Learning Services. 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr D Smalley, Executive Member 
[The meeting started at 2.30 pm and finished at 2.40 pm]. 

Page 2



 

 

  
 

   

 
Decision Session - Executive Member for 
Culture, Leisure and Communities  
       

 
23 September 2019 

Report of the Assistant Director (Communities and Culture) 

York Learning: Future Direction 

Summary 

1. This report proposes a direction of travel for the future management 
arrangements of York Learning.  

 Recommendations 

2. The Executive Member is asked to approve the direction of travel for 
York Learning, set out in paragraph 10, through collaboration with 
North Yorkshire County Council. 

Reason:  To enhance the service’s ability to achieve its mission of 

ensuring that all learners have the skills and motivation to 
maximise their life chances and to maximise the level of 
resource directed to front-line services. 

 Background 

3. York Learning is a Council service which focuses primarily on: 

 Helping those furthest from the job market to improve their 
confidence, self-esteem and employability skills.  

 Delivering community based learning, co-produced with local 
people, close to where they live and work, and designed to take 
account of community needs. 

 Working with the most disadvantaged to improve their English, 
maths and ICT. 

 Delivering provision to 90+ High Needs Support students who 
might otherwise require “out of area” placements. 

 Delivering apprenticeships both for the council and for small 
businesses locally. 

4. Over the past few years, the service has investigated various operating 
models for future delivery.  The key driver for this has been that, 
despite growth in some of its funding streams, the service remains 

Page 3 Agenda Item 4



 

relatively small.  As a result, it has insufficient ability to fund the level of 
management and delivery capacity that would be desirable in some 
key areas of its operation.  It also remains vulnerable to future national 
funding changes.  Action is now needed to develop a delivery model 
that: 

 Is operationally robust and reasonably future proof. 

 Can operate without Council subsidy and with an acceptable level 
of financial risk for the Council. 

 Creates an organisation of sufficient scale that is: 

o able to fund essential functions, IT systems and quality 
processes, 

o influential within the city, 

o attractive to work for, 

o able to maintain the high standards of delivery set by York 
Learning. 

5. In 2017, the York, North Yorkshire and East Riding Local Enterprise 
Partnership Skills Manager, was asked by the local authorities to carry 
out a piece of work focussing on local skills delivery across the sub-
region, with particular emphasis on locally based community learning.  
This work, which was commissioned primarily in response to the 
challenge that devolution might bring, found scope for: 

 Services to share back office functions, particularly in regard to 
the complex data returns demanded by contracting requirements, 

 Services to collaborate to produce efficiencies of service delivery 
and effectiveness of approach, 

 Sharing of good practice from each authority to expand and 
develop the offer to local communities.  

6. Also in late 2017 the Council entered into a temporary arrangement 
with North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) to second our Head of 
Service, Alistair Gourlay, to NYCC on a part-time basis.  This followed 
difficulty that NYCC had experienced in recruiting satisfactorily to their 
vacant head of service post.  The primary purpose of the secondment 
was for the Head of Service to secure an assessment of “Good” under 
the Ofsted framework and this has now been achieved.  (York is also 
assessed as “Good”).  

7. Following the retirement of Alistair Gourlay the Council and NYCC 
have agreed to recruit a joint Head of Service who will manage both 
services.  This job, which NYCC will host, is currently out to 
advertisement.  It will be shared equally between the two authorities 
and will be responsible for a combined budget of close to £8m. 

Page 4



 

Proposal 

8. York Learning’s Strategic Service Plan, approved by the Executive 
Member in July, included the objective to Consolidate partnership 
working with North Yorkshire County Council and agree a strategy for 
future collaborative working.  This reflects the view of both services 
that the two services would be stronger, more capable of taking a 
strategic approach, and better able to respond to change and deliver 
service improvement if there were in place formal arrangements for 
wider collaboration in the management of the two services.  It is 
therefore proposed that the new, joint Head of Services is asked to 
investigate the potential for further sharing of management functions.  
It should be stressed that there is no proposal at this stage to join the 
two services per se: they will remain separate, continue to be 
accountable separately to their respective authorities and retain 
separate Skills Funding Agency contracts.  However, there may well 
be potential to share further posts at the next tier of management. 

9. The two services are already quite closely aligned in the way they are 
managed and structured and deliver their services. This is 
demonstrated in the following where both services now share a 
common structure and processes: 

 A senior leadership team consisting of a Head of Service and 
strategic managers who oversee a number of functions, 

 A curriculum based structure to manage teaching and learning, 
with specialist managers for each area of the curriculum,  

 A self-assessment process with shared quality improvement 
format. Both services also have similar observation of teaching 
and learning processes,  

 MIS systems from the same supplier – with potential to share a 
single system, 

 Area based delivery model with locally based administrative staff,  

 Similar contractual arrangements for teaching staff, 

 Very similar arrangements for the delivery of provision for SEND 
EHCP students, with identical commissioning arrangements, 

10. Areas where a joint management approach could be beneficial include: 

 SEND / High Needs 19+ programmes, to include directly delivery 
and sub-contracting arrangements: These are procured and 
supported in a similar manner across the two authorities and a 
single strategic manager looking after this provision with a budget 
of just over £3m could work well. 

Page 5



 

 Quality Assurance and Improvement:  This could be managed 
through a single role and could include provision for sharing 
Observations of Teaching and Learning, Self- Assessment, 
Prevent and Safeguarding functions. 

 Functional skills English and maths including Family Learning: 
There is good strategic management and understanding of this 
provision in York and making this a joint role could work well.  

 Apprenticeships: a single operational manager could look after 
workplace learning and learners loans. 

 Data and Management Information Systems: these are a 
significant component in adult learning provision and an obvious 
area for collaboration.  Sharing of staff expertise across the two 
local authorities would mitigate some of the “single point of failure” 
issues that both services face.    

 Community Learning provision, including engagement and first 
steps provision 

 Full cost programmes and the development of new full cost 
provision. 

Options and Analysis 

11. The Executive Member is invited to comment on the direction of travel 
proposed for the future management of York Learning. 

Next Steps 

12. The new head of service will be expected to develop proposals for a 
revised structure of posts at the next tier of management.  It is 
anticipated that this will involve further posts being shared at that tier in 
order for them to take responsibility for provision across both services.  
There are a number of options about how this might be achieved which 
could include further shared posts but which might also include the 
“trading” of management services between the two authorities.  Any 
legal agreements required to underpin such arrangements will be 
drawn up by the respective legal services teams of the two authorities. 

13. It is likely that initiatives will be tested over time.  The starting point 
may, therefore, be a limited set of proposals which develop in 
sophistication over time as confidence is established in collaboration 
between the two authorities. 

14. Further reports will be brought back to the Executive Member at 
appropriate intervals should any further decisions be required.  The 
issue will also continue to be covered in the York Learning Strategic 
Service Plan as well as within routine reporting to the Children, 
Education and Communities Scrutiny Committee. 

Page 6



 

Implications  

15. Financial:  York Learning is funded almost exclusively from external 
contract funding and fee income.  For the academic year 2019/20 
gross expenditure will be in the region of £3.3m, with approximately 
£80k funded from the Local Authority’s base budget.  The purpose 
of shared management arrangements is not, therefore, to save 
money but rather to create more robust arrangements as well as to 
create more efficient arrangements that maximise the level of 
resource directed to front-line service provision. 

16. Human Resources:  Consultation will be required with the staff 
affected by any potential joint management arrangements at the next 
tier level and consideration will need to be given as to how the posts 
would be set up and any impact on individuals.  Detailed arrangements 
will be subject to the respective local authority consultation and 
approvals processes including consultation with the staff affected and 
the appropriate trades unions.   

17. The report has no additional Equalities, Legal, Information Technology, 
Property or other implications beyond those highlighted in the report. 

Council Plan 

18. The proposals in this paper further the Council Plan themes of Well-
paid Jobs and an Inclusive Economy and An Open and Effective 
Council. 

Risk Management 

19. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy the main 
risks that have been identified associated with the proposals 
contained in this report are those which could lead to the inability to 
meet business objectives and to deliver services, leading to damage 
to the Council’s reputation and failure to meet stakeholders’ 
expectations.  The level of risk is assessed as “Low”.  This is 
acceptable but means that regular monitoring is required of the 
operation of the new arrangements. 

Page 7



 

Contact Details 

Authors: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Charlie Croft 
charlie.croft@york.gov.uk 

Amanda Hatton   
Corporate Director - Children, Education 
and Communities 
    

Report 
Approved 

 
Date: 
11/09/19 

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s): 

Lisa Pannitt  HR Advisor 

Wards Affected:   All  

For further information please contact the author of the report 

 

 

Abbreviations 

EHCP - Education, health and care plan 

NYCC - North Yorkshire County Council  

SEND - Special educational needs and disability 

Page 8


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 York Learning: Future Direction

